Company Registration Number: 07807291 (England & Wales)

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone (A company limited by guarantee)

Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 31 August 2023

ACXH65ZK

A08 23/02/2024 #27

COMPANIES HOUSE

Contents

	Page
Reference and administrative details	1
Trustees' report	2 - 10
Governance statement	11 - 13
Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance	14
Statement of trustees' responsibilities	15
Independent auditors' report on the financial statements	16 - 18
Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity	19 - 20
Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account	21
Balance sheet	22
Statement of cash flows	23
Notes to the financial statements	24 - 45

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

(A company limited by guarantee)

Reference and Administrative Details of the Academy Trust, its trustees and Advisers for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Members

The Diocese of Canterbury Academies Company Ltd

G. P. Munson (on behalf of Parochial Church Council of Boxley (Canterbury Diocese)) Rev. Canon J. Corbyn (on behalf of Archdeacon of Maidstone) retired 4 September 2023

A. Parker-Bruce, Chair of Trustees (terminated 4 October 2022)

S. E. Willmott (appointed 4 October 2022)

Trustees

A. Parker-Bruce, Chair of Trustees (terminated 4 October 2022) 1

S. E. Willmott, Vice Chair to and Chair of Trustees from 8 December 2022 and Chair of Finance 12

M. Parkes 2

G. Bibby (on behalf of Archdeacon of Maidstone) retired 4 September 2023

D. J. D. Smith, Headteacher and Accounting Officer 1

J. Finch Deputy Headteacher

H. M. Downey Staff Trustee (terminated 19 September 2022)

H. L. Griffiths Staff Trustee S. A. Brindle Parent Trustee 1 E. M. Munro Parent Trustee

F.A. Brako (terminated 30 September 2022) ³ E.K. Agyei-Fokuo (terminated 21 July 2023) 12 A. Parker-Bruce (appointed 6 November 2023) A.P. Cooke (appointed 23 November 2023) ²

Members of the Finance Committee

2 On behalf of Parochial Church Council of Boxley (Canterbury Diocese)

On behalf of The Diocese of Canterbury Academies Company

Company registered number

07807291

Company name

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

Principal and registered office St John's Church of England Primary School

Provender Way Weavering Maidstone Kent ME145TZ

Senior management team

D. J. D. Smith, Headteacher J. Finch, Deputy Headteacher H. L. Griffiths Assistant Headteacher H. M. Downey, Chief Financial Officer

Independent auditors

UHY Kent LLP t/a UHY Hacker Young

Chartered Accountants **Statutory Auditors** Thames House Roman Square Sittingbourne Kent ME104BJ

Bankers

National Westminster Bank 3 High Street Maidstone

Kent ME14 1HJ St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's reports of the Academy Trust for the year I September 2022 to 31 August 2023.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity, and its Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.

The trustees of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone are also the directors of the Trust for the purposes of company law and are sometimes also referred to as governors since this is the common term used in educational institutions. Details of the trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

Trustees' Indemnities

The Trust maintains trustees' and officers' liability insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its trustees. The Trust has also granted indemnities to each of its trustees and other officers to the extent permitted by law. Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) were in force during the period and remain in force, in relation to certain losses and liabilities which the trustees or other officers may incur to third parties in the course of acting as trustees or officers of the Trust.

Details of the insurance cover are provided in note 14 to the financial statements.

Principal Activities

The Trust took over the operation of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone on the school's conversion to academy status on 1 November 2011. Since then, the Trust's principal object and activity has been to manage the school's provision of education to pupils between the ages of 4 and 11, serving a catchment area of Grove Green, Weavering and Bearsted Park, Maidstone. It has a pupil capacity of 436 and had a roll of 440 (2021 – 438) in the school census on 7 October 2022.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

Under the terms of its Articles, the Trust shall have the following trustees:

- Parent trustees Appointment by nomination and, as appropriate, election through a ballot
- Staff trustees Appointment by nomination and, as appropriate, election through a ballot
- Parochial Church Council, Archdeacon's appointment and Diocese of Canterbury Academies Company Governors By nomination
- Other trustees (Headteacher and Priest in Charge, Boxley Parish -as incumbent where in role)
- Additional trustees These may be appointed by either the Secretary of State for Education or the Diocese should they see
 fit to do so and in consultation with the Trust.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new trustees depends on their previous experience. All new trustees are given a tour of the school and the chance to meet with staff and pupils. All trustees are also provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role. The trustees utilise the services of Kent County Council for Governor Training and the National Governor Association and all trustees have access to a full programme of courses which they will choose to attend, based on their role and experience.

Organisational Structure

The organisational structure consists of two levels: the trustees and the Senior Management Team (including the extended Senior Leadership Team, which includes senior staff). The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels. During the year under review the full board met six times and there were seven Finance Committee meetings.

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Organisational Structure (continued)

The trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the Academy, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments. The majority of roles and responsibilities have been delegated to a small number of committees. The full board has retained responsibility for certain key aspects.

The Senior Leadership Team comprises the Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher, Assistant Headteacher the Finance and Administration Manager, together with Key-Stage leaders, subject leaders and the Special Educational Needs Coordinator. These managers control the Trust at an executive level implementing the policies laid down by the trustees and reporting back to them. As a group the Senior Leadership Team are responsible for the authorisation of spending up to a level delegated to them within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff, although appointment boards for posts in the Senior Leadership Team always contain a trustee.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the trustees and Senior Management Team as disclosed on page 1.

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for the key management personnel, was developed and approved by the board of trustees, after taking advice from the Headteacher and following guidance from the relevant professional pay review bodies. Naturally, the Headteacher was not involved in setting his own remuneration package.

Only staff trustees, including the Headteacher, are remunerated, and these individuals only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of their role as trustees. Specific disclosures concerning staff trustees' remuneration are included in note 13.

The day to day running of the remuneration policy is delegated to the Headteacher and monitored by the personnel and finance committees. All details for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel are set out in the pay policy and appraisal policy which are reviewed annually by the board of trustees.

Remuneration of key management personnel is set at an individual level, and where possible the trustees have taken external professional advice which includes benchmarking, market trends and advice on structuring of incentives. Senior management salaries are linked closely to pay spines, helping trustees conclude that each individual's remuneration is at an appropriate level. As such salaries are linked to factors such as length of service, experience and level of responsibility. Total remuneration packages include employer pension contribution rates at specific approved rates.

The board always bear in mind the charitable status of the Academy Trust and recognise the fact the Trust receives funding under a funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education, and therefore ensure the remuneration paid to senior management personnel never exceeds a reasonable amount that provides value for money to the Trust. The performance of senior management personnel is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure continuing value for money.

Total remuneration paid to senior management personnel is set out in note 12d.

Risk Management

The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to the specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Trust and its finances. The trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces, especially in the operational areas (e.g., in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to the control of finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.g., vetting of new staff and visitors, supervision of school grounds) and internal financial controls (see below) to manage risk. Where significant financial risk still remains, they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls, and this is explained in more detail in the Governance Statement.

Trade union facility time

The average number of full -time equivalent employees in the financial year was 53 (2022: 53). There are no appointed union officials and thus no time nor cost spent on facility time.

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships

The school enjoys a very positive relationship with the bodies that appoint the members and the majority of trustees; the Diocese of Canterbury Academies Company Ltd and Boxley Parochial Church Council. Material changes to the school are formally and informally consulted such that these "sponsors" views are clearly represented. Less formally, the school maintains open channels of communication with both organisations.

The school also benefits from an active parent led group, The Eriends of St John's, who raise money on the behalf of the school.

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims

The principal object and activity of the Trust is the operation of the Academy, and it is to provide education for pupils between the ages of 4 and 11. Our aim is to educate children to a high standard whilst maintaining our core Christian values. See below

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The Trust was set up to advance, for the public benefit, education in the local area.

As a Church of England school, we attain high standards in a Christian Ethos of care and respect. Our objective is to ensure that all children achieve their potential both academically and socially. We have made overt our Vision and core Christian values of Friendship, Forgiveness, Trust and Compassion. In doing this the Governing Body seeks to maintain and indeed strengthen the school's high standards of achievement and its core values, whilst continuing to work to fulfil the Academy's development plans.

Public Benefit

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone is an Academy converter catering for children aged 4 to 11 and strives to promote and support the advancement of education within the local area. The school provides an extensive programme of educational and recreational activity - all designed to contribute to the overall education of its pupils in areas such as academic distinction, music, the arts and sport.

The school was awarded an Outstanding grading from Ofsted following inspection in July 2015, with particular emphasis on Leadership and Management, Behaviour and Safety, Quality of Teaching, Achievement of Pupils and Early Years Provision.

As a Church of England School, we work tirelessly to maintain and strengthen our Christian caring ethos and have embedded our core values of Friendship, Forgiveness, Trust and Compassion across the school. Our vision is as under

Our school is a place of sanctuary, strength and high achievement where all are heard, respected, encouraged and nurtured. Ever outward looking and rooted in the teachings of Jesus; as stewards of God's creation we aim to grow beyond all we can imagine.

In June 2019 the school was one of the first to be inspected under the new framework for the Statutory Inspection of Anglican and Methodist Schools (SIAMS) and we remain very proud to be rated Good following a very rigorous review. The implementation of our vision was a key focus for the inspector.

In December 2019 the school underwent an Ofsted Section 8 "Deep-dive" Subject (History) Inspection, which does not affect our overall Current (Section 5) Ofsted Report (2015) but which highlighted the good progress being made in delivering the new curriculum. Both formal inspections provided very positive parent feedback through OFSTED'S online parent questionnaire.

Wherever possible the school also aims to contribute to the benefit of the wider public, by making available the premises to third parties for the provision of educational and other opportunities. For example:

- The Church of St John's and Kingsquad
- Kent Chamber choir
- Local children's karate club
- Various sports clubs, for example Circuit training, Pilates and Beginners2Runners

After considerable research and due diligence, from April 2018, we accepted a company, EnergyKidz (now rebranded JAG-Junior Adventures Group), a provider of out of school childcare with breakfast, after school and holiday clubs, to operate from our premises. This company contracts directly with parents/carers and provides revenue to the school for the use of the hall and grounds throughout the year. The service continues to be well used and held in high regard.

In addition, pupils normally go out into and support the community and as examples;

- The choir perform externally
- Pupils undertake litter picking in the local area
- Food received during our Harvest festival is donated to a local charity

On a wider basis the children regularly become involved in charity activities, the school council and eco council deciding which charities to support and focussing especially on those involving disadvantaged children and the environment including a Christmas Shoe Box Appeal RBL Poppy Appeal and Children in Need.

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit. The trustees believe that the Trust's aims, together with the activities outlined above, are demonstrably to the public benefit.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Performance

Following inspection in July 2015 the Academy achieved an OFSTED Grading of Outstanding in all areas (Leadership and Management, Behaviour and Safety, Quality of Teaching, Achievement of Pupils and Early Years Provision). We are alive to the requirements of the new Ofsted Framework and are working to ensure an Outstanding Grade under these new criteria.

St John's Church of England Primary School is committed to:

Raising pupil attainment and improving progress

The curriculum in line with the current Ofsted Framework for a wider curriculum is published on our website and is fully embedded in the school.

The Academy tracks the progress of all children, providing data that celebrates strengths and highlights to staff underachievement. This triggers a range of interventions designed to accelerate progress and attainment. As a result of this system of identifying children at risk of underachieving at the earliest juncture, St John's Church of England Primary School maintains its commitment to strive for the highest standards across the curriculum for all our children. The number of children achieving greater depth in their KS2 SATs and the average scaled scores for progress are a testament to the hard work of their teachers throughout their time at St John's.

Both within our school and recognised nationally the adverse impact of the pandemic on learning has been greatest in younger children, entering Year R from September 2020 to 2022 and those that were already in year R and KS1. Our pre pandemic investment in the Year 1 outdoor areas to complement that already in place for Year R enabled an enhanced provision for children from year R to Year 1 and provided a wider range of activities to aid learning and progress which continues to have a positive impact on learning.

The significant investments made in 2020/21 and 2021/22 to provide an enhanced and updated provision for our pupils, continues to bear fruit in particular the reorganisation of areas outside the 14 classrooms to provide more flexible use of space has enabled the school to ensure high quality intervention space is available allowing effective use of intervention time and small group work.

The school continues to implement planned interventions covered by high needs funding and pupil premium monies received utilising reserves brought forward and received in the year appropriately to support the affected children. The impact of the interventions is carefully tracked allowing adjustments where needed. Grants received have been expended on staffing to support learning which has allowed individual classes to work in smaller groups for extended periods and has enabled targeted support and challenge for all pupils.

The Academy compares itself to other schools nationally and monitors teaching and learning; it is committed to closing the achievement gap with all groups of children without compromising the highest achievers. It also works closely with other local schools in a consortium to enable this Academy, as with others, to identify and implement improvements and ensure best practice.

The Academy's ethos is one of continuous improvement and seeking to improve its quality of teaching and learning provision in its mission to strive for excellence. We work closely with our External School Improvement Advisor to ensure the school is focussed accordingly.

The national curriculum assessments were held in summer 2023, including tests, teacher assessments and the phonics screening check.

The results for 2022/23 and the prior year comparator are reproduced below

At the end of the 2022/23 academic year test results at the end of Key Stage 2 were significantly above the government's floor targets both for progress and attainment.

Key Stage 2:

2021/22

- 76.6% achieved at the "expected" standard + in Reading, Writing and Maths, the national average being 59%
- 15.6% achieved at a higher standard in Reading Writing and Maths, the national average being 7%.

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

2022/23

- 72.7% achieved at the "expected" standard + in Reading, Writing and Maths, the national average being 59%
- 24% achieved at a higher standard in Reading Writing and Maths, the national average being 8%.

2022/23 are as published in September 2023. The percentage will be revised upwards in December 2023 to include successful grade boundary appeals which should increase the achieved 'expected to 74.2%.

Key Stage 1:

2021/22

- 83% achieved the "expected" standard + in Reading, the national average being 67%
- 68% achieved the "expected" standard + in Writing, the national average being 58%
- 77% achieved the "expected" standard + in Maths, the national average being 68%

2022/23

- 80% achieved the "expected" standard + in Reading, the national average being 68%
- 80% achieved the "expected" standard + in Writing, the national average being 60%
- 82% achieved the "expected" standard + in Maths, the national average being 70%

Early Years Foundation Stage:

2021/22

- 56% achieved a good level of development, (National 2022) 65%.
- Year 1 Phonics Testing and Statutory Assessments Pass 88% (National 2022 75%)

2022/23

- 77% achieved a good level of development, (National 2023) 67%.
- Year 1 Phonics Testing and Statutory Assessments Pass 79% (National 2023 79%)

In addition to academic achievement the Sports Premium is carefully managed to ensure all children benefit and the school has a wide range of clubs to enable pupils to further broaden their learning.

The Academy has maintained

- Recognition by Eco schools as a Green Flag, the highest accolade achievable currently
- A Green school by The Woodland Trust and we are working towards Platinum standard.

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The trustees consider that the following are key performance indicators for the Trust:

- The school remained oversubscribed as a school of first choice with a waiting list of children placed elsewhere;
- It achieved an "Outstanding" rating by Ofsted in 2015, Good rating for SIAMS in June 2019 and a positive Section 8 review in December 2019;
- It operates within budget which is set to ensure revenue expenditure broadly matches income;
- Income per pupil was £5,837 (2022: £5,594); and
- 79.1% (2022 80.0%) of Income received from the ESFA and KCC, excluding Universal Infant Free School Meals, is spent on staff costs (including employer pension costs incurred, but excluding provision for notional pension liability).

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

The trustees have been pleased that expectations for all key performance indicators listed have been successfully met during the period.

The use of EnergyKidz, now rebranded Junior Adventure Group, wrap around care continues to be a very popular and is a highly thought of provision, which is also providing income to the Academy.

We are very aware of the need to ensure the wellbeing of our staff not only for their benefit, but also to ensure outstanding performance individually and as a team and to maintain our high levels of staff retention. The senior leadership team monitor staff workloads carefully including inter alia by ensuring that those staff working 1:1 with pupils with the significant challenges rotate, we have dedicated Planning Preparation and Assessment (PPA) space and enable home working as an alternative to onsite PPA time where appropriate. We have set up a Wellbeing staff group which has representatives from across staff groups, led by a staff member who obtained a relevant qualification with a clear support structure included on a Wellbeing Board in the staff room. A counselling service is available for teachers through our insurance.

The Academy retains the services of an external Data Protection Officer, provided by Cantium Business Solutions, a wholly owned subsidiary of Kent County Council.

Financial Review

Most of the Academy Trust's recurrent income is obtained from the ESFA in the form of grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2023 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities ("SoFA"). Core grant income has been supplemented by capital funding and various other self-generated income streams.

Total income for the year was £2.57m compared to £2.45m in the previous year. Most of this increase was due to a rise on funding for education operations, as detailed in note 4. This shows that DfE/ESFA funding increased by £95k to £2.13m. Local Authority grants were £302k compared to £303k in 2021/22.

Total expenditure for the year per the SoFA amounted to £2.36m (2022: £2.60m), leaving net income for the year of £204k (2022: net expenditure of £154k).

The overall net movement in funds, after actuarial movements on the Local Government defined benefit pension scheme ("LGPS"), was an increase in funds of £479k (2022: increase in funds of £1.09m).

The large actuarial gain this year arises due to changes in the assumptions used by the actuary when compiling the valuation report, which have resulted in a significant reduction in the pension deficit carried on the Academy Trust's Balance Sheet. These assumptions are explained further in notes 2 and 24 to the financial statements.

Since this total movement in funds includes income and expenditure through the restricted fixed asset fund relating to capital items, and also movements on the LGPS deficit, it does not reflect an operational result. The table that follows has therefore been included to reconcile from the movement in funds shown on the SoFA to the increase in revenue income funds for the year, an increase of £251k (2022: £113k):

	2023 (£000s)	2022 (£000s)
Overall net movement in funds for the year per SoFA	479	1,090
Add:		
Decrease / (increase) attributable to fixed asset fund	6	6
LGPS actuarial loss shown on face of SoFA	(275)	(1,243)
Other LGPS charges - service and interest costs	41	260
Total movement in year on revenue funds	251	113
Revenue to capital transfers	-	28
Operational surplus on revenue funds	251	141

With no revenue to capital transfers this year the operational surplus was equal to the rise in revenue income funds. In the prior year a decision to invest some revenue funding in capital equipment meant the operational result for the year was higher than the movement in revenue funds.

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

At 31 August 2023, the net book value of fixed assets was £96k and movements in tangible fixed assets are shown in note 15 to the financial statements. During the year the assets were used almost exclusively for providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of the trust's academy, the only exceptions to this being limited letting of the premises to local community groups.

Financial position

Unlike non-church academies, the school land and buildings are not recognised as assets in the financial statements.

The Trust had net assets, or funds, of £1.00m at 31 August 2023 (2022: £526k). This total is split between the following types of fund:

- Revenue income funds of £907k (2022: £656k), which relate to the core funding and the day-to-day running of the academy.
 These funds comprise restricted revenue funds of £538k (2022: £334k) and unrestricted or 'free' reserves of £369k (2022: £322k).
- Restricted fixed asset funds of £98k (2022: £104k) which represent the net book value of fixed assets plus unspent capital grants.
- The pension reserve, although at 31 August 2023 is shown as £nil balance (2022: deficit of £234k), relates to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), a defined benefit multi-employer pension scheme of which the Trust's non-teaching staff are members. The Trust's share of the scheme is calculated each year by the Local Authority appointed actuary and carried on the Balance Sheet in accordance with accounting rules. The pension deficit reduced significantly during the 2021/22 year as a result of a change in actuarial assumptions, which created a large actuarial gain. A further large actuarial gain arose during 2022/23, to the extent that the valuation report indicated that a pension accounting surplus existed at 31 August 2023.

Accounting standards state that if an employer has an accounting surplus, it should only be recognised to the extent that it is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future, or through refunds. There are differing opinions across both the public sector and the accounting profession as to the extent to which a pension surplus represents an "unconditional right" of employers and therefore the extent to which the surplus can be recognised as being of economic value, and to date the ESFA have been unable to give any guidance to academy trusts. The trustees have therefore taken the view that, since the Trust is a long-term employer open to new members, there is not a reasonable expectation of ever reaching a point of cessation and therefore being able to access a return of surplus. Accordingly the surplus has not been included, and a break-even £nil position has been reflected on the Balance Sheet. The pension surplus is disclosed in note 2 and the actuarial assumptions and other movements in the year are disclosed in note 24.

It is noteworthy that any pension surplus or deficit is merely an accounting figure calculated under FRS 102 for the purposes of the financial statements, and has no direct effect on the employer contribution rate paid by the Trust, which is determined using longer-term funding assumptions. These contribution rates are reviewed every three years in consultation with the scheme's administrators, and current employer contributions due by the Academy Trust are fixed until 1 April 2026.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies note 1.2.

Reserves Policy

The trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust throughout the year. This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of the reserves.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Trust operates within a budget. It does not use complex financial instruments but manages its activities using cash and various items such as trade debtors and trade creditors that arise directly from its operations.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The main risks that the Trust is exposed to are summarised below. For each of these risks the probability, impact and seriousness have been considered together with appropriate action and management plans:

- Operational and reputational this covers risks to the running of the Academy (including the capacity of staff and buildings to meet the needs of pupils) and its performance in delivering the curriculum.
- Financial covering risks to the Trust's financial position, including revenue streams, cost control and cash management.

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

The risks to which the Trust is exposed arise both internally and externally. External risks include those in respect of future funding levels, falling pupil numbers, changes to rules and regulations, and the financial position of the staff pension schemes.

The school building was constructed in the late 1980's as a one form entry primary school. It was enlarged in 2011 to form a two-form entry and is of standard brick construction under a tiled roof. There is no RAAC. Trustees are alive to the need to maintain the building as it ages and have a sinking fund to provide for future increased maintenance. In 2021/22 the servery, some carpeting and cloakrooms were replaced/refurbished. Minor repairs and redecorations are carried out by the caretaker. All required inspections e.g. the boiler and legionella tests are undertaken, and relevant registers are maintained. A completed health a safety checklist is provided for Board meetings. An external provider carries out a full annual Health and Safety check and the report provided to trustees provides comfort that the building is well managed, safe and complies with all relevant Regulations.

An external Energy Audit was carried out during the year as a result of which the school has invested in the replacement of lighting to LED. In Autumn 2023/24 work has been undertaken to the hot water systems to improve performance and remove the legionella risk. Further work to improve energy performance is planned for 2023/24. The school grounds are well maintained by the caretaker and trees are inspected regularly with maintenance as required.

Investment Policy

The Academy rarely has large sums suitable for formal investment. It does, however, ensure that any available funds can earn interest whilst remaining available within timescales defined by the intended use of the funds.

FUND RAISING

Under the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 the trustees must include information on fundraising practices.

The academy has hitherto had very little identifiable fundraising from the public for its own benefit. Events normally take place in the year to raise money for specific charities. When events are held there is no pressure to support the charity and amounts suggested for children are modest so that parents/carers of all children are able to participate. The charities are chosen by the children to support those that mean something to them. No chosen charity has any political involvement.

We approach reputable bodies locally including e.g., Tesco, the Royal Engineers 36 Engineers Regiment, the Gurkhas and local businesses seeking support, in particular in the provision of labour, to undertake projects within the school that cannot be funded within the budget. In the past, the support received has been of enormous value to the academy and has fitted with the provider's requirement for Social Responsibility. We continue to seek such support for appropriate projects.

There have been no complaints in respect of fundraising.

The Friends of St John's, a separate legal entity, managed by a committee of parents elected by parents, organise events to raise money for the school. The Friends events conform to recognised standards.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

The future plans for the school are based on ensuring that the highest standards of education and maximum opportunities are provided for all our pupils.

We maintain School Improvement Plans, agreed between the Headteacher and Governors - Examples of 2023/24 Key Priorities are:

- Wellbeing of all in relation to 'living and working'
- Learning taking children on from where they are as individuals and groups (children with special educational needs, those who
 have free school meals/pupil premium, those who are behind where they need to be).
- Attainment/progress directly linked to standards across the school (based on previous end of year data)
- Longer term view to return to Reading, Writing and Maths GPS to Expected 85-90% and Greater Depth 25-30+%
- Curriculum continued implementation and updating of the curriculum enjoyment, engagement, monitoring, assessment and evidencing excellence. Continued development of phonics and the reading journey for our children.
- Leadership awareness that all are leaders to some extent and support development of new leaders
- Introduction of new Behaviour Policy
- To maintain school standards to meet Ofsted requirements for an Outstanding school

Trustees' Report For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

In addition to plans for staff and pupils we are focussed on investing in our building to aid our movement towards being carbon neutral by 2030. We look forward to 2023/2024 being a year that every child is able to progress well from their individual starting points within an environment where pupils and staff can feel secure.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

In so far as the trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware; and
- the trustees have taken all the steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

AUDITORS

The auditors, UHY Kent LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office, which will be considered by the Trustees. The designated trustees will propose a motion re-appointing the auditors at a meeting of the trustees.

This report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees and signed on the board's behalf by:

—DocuSigned by:

Sw Willmott 89EF49FEA3E04E8.

S Willmott Chair of Trustees

Date: 7 December 2023

-- DocuSigned by:

AJSWA

-241D046B41074F2...

D.J. D. Smith Accounting Officer

Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
A. Parker-Bruce	I	1
S. E. Willmott	6	6
M. Parkes	6	6
G. Bibby	6	6
D. J. D. Smith	6	6
J. Finch	5	6
S. Brindle	5	6
E. Munro	5	6
H Griffiths	6	6
F Brako	1	1
E. Agyei-Fokuo	5	6

The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to monitor, prepare and approve the budget and ensure that sufficient financial controls are in place to safeguard the Academy's assets, provide Value for Money and to protect against financial risks.

The accounting system enables production of timely financial reporting and management information. Trustees and staff continued to ensure that pupils' safety and progress was not compromised whilst budgetary control remained firm.

Attendance at Finance Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

<u>Trustee</u>	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
D. J. D Smith	6	7
S. E. Willmott	7	7
A. Parker-Bruce	0	l l
S. Brindle	6	7
E. Agyei-Fokuo	4	7

H. M. Downey, in her role as Chief Financial Officer, attended 7 meetings and T Barnaba attended 7 meetings in her capacity as a member of the finance team.

Conflicts of Interest

All trustees are asked to complete a related party questionnaire during their induction. Conflicts of Interest are checked regularly by way of an annual statement from each trustee as well as confirmation at each Full Board and Committee meeting. Were there to be any conflict of interest declared the individual would not be able to take part in the agenda item, discussion or voting. This would be documented by the Clerk to Trustees. Trustees who are members of staff declare their interest at every meeting and all attendees are reminded-to-declare-and-pecuniary-or-non-pecuniary-interest-should-that-become-relevant-during-the-meeting.

Governance Statement

Competitive quotes are sought for ongoing contracts and one-off supply. Due diligence is undertaken for new suppliers. Governor and potentially auditor approval/advice is sought where there is a potential for a connected or related party transaction. All such transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the EFSA where required and with the Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

Review of Value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received,

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered continued value for money during the year by:

- Ensuring funds are allocated with precision to ensure benefit for all pupils.
- Accurate use of funds in the employment, deployment and organisation of support staff to work with and support more vulnerable
 and disadvantaged children educationally, medically and with regard to some children's personal care.
- The Academy reviews and monitors results proactively.
- The Academy continues to closely monitor supplier contracts to ensure value for money is achieved.
- The Academy seeks to improve lettings income.
- The Academy maintains contracts for regular maintenance of the estate which are benchmarked and reviewed to ensure value for money by combining decision making based not only on costs but also high quality and speed of service where breakdown may occur so that the school can continue operationally. The Academy retained reserves so that investment could be made to improve the estate in 2021/22 and 2022/23 and with plans for further investment in the estate in 2023/24 to provide a reduce reduction in costs in the longer term and to work towards being carbon neutral.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
- regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure;
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
- delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and
- identification and management of risks.

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to appoint an internal auditor. However, the trustees appointed PLR Advisory Limited to perform additional checks during the year. As a result of the revised FRC Ethical Standard this role and the external audit are undertaken by separate and unconnected firms.

The auditors' roles include giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems. On an annual basis, the auditor's and internal auditor's report to the Board of Trustees on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 August 2023 the internal audit function was fully delivered in line with the requirements of the Education & Skills Funding Agency, and no material issues were reported to the trustees.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the external auditors;
- the financial management and governance self-assessment process;
- the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf, by:

-DocuSigned by:

Sw Willmott 89EF49FEA3E04E8...

S Willmott, Chair of Trustees

Date: 7 December 2023

-DocuSigned by:

ATSWM

-241D046B41074F2...

D. J. D. Smith, Headteacher and Accounting Officer

Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone, I have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that I and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

-DocuSigned by:

ATSWA

-241D046B41074F2...

D.J.D. Smith
Accounting Officer

Date: 7 December 2023

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities For the year ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial. Under company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023;
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will
 continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

-DocuSigned by:

Sw Willmott 89EF49FEA3E04E8..

S. Willmott Chair of Trustees

Date: 7 December 2023

Independent auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone (the 'academy trust') for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
- the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Independent auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

How the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

- we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the academy trust through discussions with management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the academy and wider education sector;
- we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the accounts or the
 operations of the academy trust, including the Academy Trust Handbook, Academies Accounts Direction, Charity SORP and
 the Companies Act 2006;
- we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of management and inspecting correspondence; and
- identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team and the team remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy trust's accounts to material misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

- making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and
- considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Independent auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone (continued)

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

- performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
- tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;
- assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the accounting policies were indicative of potential bias; and
- investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which included, but were not limited to:

- agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
- · reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; and
- enquiring of management and representatives of Trustees as to actual and potential litigation and claims.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors' report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Konb UP

Allan Hickie BSc FCA (Senior statutory auditor) for and on behalf of UHY Kent LLP Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditors Thames House Roman Square Sittingbourne Kent ME10 4BJ

Date: 14 December 2023

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 5 October 2020 and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 November 2011 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

We conducted our work in accordance with Technical Release TECH 08/12 AAF issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants In England and Wales. In accordance with that Technical Release we have carried out the procedures we consider necessary to arrive at our conclusion. Other than those procedures undertaken for the purposes of our audit of the financial statements of St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone for the year ended 31 August 2023 which provide evidence on regularity, our work was limited to only those additional procedures necessary to provide limited assurance.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion included:

- an assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety across all of the Academy Trust's activities;
- further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including enquiry, identification of control processes and examination of supporting evidence across all areas identified as well as additional verification work where considered necessary; and
- consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above and the work completed as part of our financial statements audit in order to support the regularity conclusion.

In line with the Framework and guide for external auditors and reporting accountants of academy trusts issued April 2023, we have not performed any additional procedures regarding the Trust's compliance with safeguarding, health and safety and estates management.

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

UHY Kent LLP

Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditors Thames House Roman Square Sittingbourne Kent ME10 4BJ

Date: 14 December 2023

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account) Tor the year ended 31 August 2023

	Note	Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Restricted funds 2023	Restricted fixed asset funds 2023	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Income from:						
Donations and capital grants	3	8,225	-	27,754	35,979	24,586
Other trading activities	5	33,673	-	-	33,673	31,689
Investments	6	10,555	-	-	10,555	625
Funding for educational operations	4	59,309	2,428,766	-	2,488,075	2,393,166
Total income	-	111,762	2,428,766	27,754	2,568,282	2,450,066
Expenditure on:	_					
Raising funds	8	554	-	-	554	1,056
Charitable activities	9	64,109	2,265,730	33,870	2,363,709	2,602,827
Total expenditure	-	64,663	2,265,730	33,870	2,364,263	2,603,883
Net movement in funds before other recognised gains/(losses)		47,099	163,036	(6,116)	204,019	(153,817)
Other recognised gains:						
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes	24	-	275,000	-	275,000	1,243,000
Net movement in funds	=	47,099	438,036	(6,116)	479,019	1,089,183
Pacanciliation of funds						
		322 077	90 606	103 010	525 602	(563,581)
•			•	ŕ	•	1,089,183
		77,077	430,030	(0,110)	777,017	1,000,103
forward	18	369,176	537,642	97,803	1,004,621	525,602
Reconciliation of funds: Total funds brought forward Net movement in funds Total funds carried	- = 18 =	322,077 47,099	99,606 438,036	103,919 (6,116)	525,602 479,019	(563 1,089

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 24 to 45 form part of these financial statements.

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

(A company limited by guarantee) Registered number: 07807291

Balance sheet As at 31 August 2023

	Note		2023 £		2022 £
Fixed assets	Note		*		
Tangible assets	15		96,269		103,919
Current assets					
Debtors	16	50,805		<i>58,628</i> .	
Cash at bank and in hand		1,080,763		919,574	
	-	1,131,568	_	978,202	
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year	17	(223,216)		(322,519)	
Net current assets	_	·	908,352		655,683
Net assets excluding pension asset / liability			1,004,621	_	759,602
Defined benefit pension scheme asset / liability	. 24		-		(234,000)
Total net assets		=	1,004,621	=	525,602
Funds of the Academy Trust					
Restricted funds:					
Fixed asset funds	18	97,803		103,919	
Restricted income funds	18	537,642		333,606	
Restricted funds excluding pension liability	18	635,445	<u>-</u>	437,525	
Pension reserve	18	-		(234,000)	
Total restricted funds	18		635,445		203,525
Unrestricted income funds	18		369,176		322,077
Total funds		_	1,004,621		525,602
		=		=	

The financial statements on pages 21 to 45 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are signed on their behalf, by:

S. Willmott Chair of Trustees

Date: 7 December 2023

— DocuSigned by:

---- 241D046B41074F2...

D.J.D Smith

Assum

Accounting Officer and Trustee

The notes on pages 24 to 45 form part of these financial statements.

Statement of cash flows For the year ended 31 August 2023

	2023	2022
Note	£	£
20	149,100	242,526
21	12,089	(27,600)
	161,189	214,926
	919,574	704,648
22, 23	1,080,763	919,574
	20 21	Note £ 20 149,100 21 12,089 161,189 919,574

The notes on pages 24 to 45 form part of these financial statements

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

1.2 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The Academy Trust has revenue reserves of £906,818 across restricted and unrestricted funds, which is more than sufficient to meet operational needs and liabilities as they fall due.

1.3 Income

All income is recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.

• Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Grants payable

These are charged in the year when the offer is made except in those cases where the offer is conditional, such grants being recognised as expenditure when the conditions attaching are fulfilled. Grants offered subject to conditions which have not been met at the year end are noted as a commitment, but not accrued as expenditure.

Where applicable expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

1.5 Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.6 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.7 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.8 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.9 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities.

The Academy operates from land and buildings which are owned by two separate freeholders. Part of the freehold is owned by KCC, and the remainder owned by the Diocese of Canterbury. The Academy occupies the property under the terms of a Church Supplemental Agreement with the freehold owners. In considering the accounting treatment for these properties the trustees have considered the provisions of the Academies Accounts Direction (AAD). The AAD has now clarified that where a Supplemental Agreement is in place then the trust does not have full rights or control such that any asset should not be recognised in the Balance Sheet.

Per the AAD the rolling right to occupy the building could be recognised in the financial statements via a notional donation (since it pays no actual rent) with a corresponding notional rental expense for the use of the premises. The value of the donation would be the amount that the Academy Trust would otherwise have had to pay to secure premises, however since the trustees feel that this cannot be reliably measured, and in accordance with the AAD, no donation or rental expense have been recognised.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following basis:

Furniture and equipment - 10% Computer equipment - 20%

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

1.10 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.11 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

The ultimate responsibility for setting the LGPS assumptions is that of the Academy Trust, as the employer, however each year the LGPS actuary proposes a standard set of assumptions as part of the valuation exercise, using their expert opinion, and which comply with the accounting requirements. The Academy Trust has, in practice with most employers, adopted the recommended actuarial assumptions following further consultation with its auditors to ensure these assumptions are reasonable and in line with those adopted by other academy trusts.

Critical areas of judgment:

LGPS pension asset recognition

FRS 102 section 28.22 allows an entity to recognise a pension asset "only to the extent it is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan."

Whilst the LGPS actuarial valuation report for the year ended 31 August 2023 indicates a defined benefit asset of £28k exists at the year end date, the Trustees have considered that there is insufficient evidence that a surplus being recognised would ever result in a repayment or reduction in contributions, given that such a surplus is probably only temporary. Also, as a longer term employer that is open to new members, there isn't a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust will ever reach a point of cessation that would enable access to a return of surplus.

The actuarial gain has therefore been restricted to instead leave a break-even position on the Balance Sheet with neither an asset or liability recognised.

Notes to the	financial	statements
For the year	ended 31	August 2023

Income from donations and capital grants				
	Unrestricted funds 2023	Restricted fixed asset funds 2023	Total funds 2023	Tota fund 2022
	. £	£	£	
Donations	8,225	_	. 8,225	15,636
Capital grants	-	27,754	27,754	8,950
	8,225	27,754	35,979	24,580
Analysis of 2022 total by fund	15,636	8,950 —————	24,586	
Funding for educational operations				
	Unrestricted funds 2023	Restricted funds 2023	Total funds 2023	Tota funds 2022
Educational operations	£	£	£	1
DfE/ESFA grants				
General Annual Grant (GAG)	-	1,878,510	1,878,510	1,839,902
Other DfE/ESFA grants				
Pupil premium	-	68,027	68,027	70,78
Universal infant free school meals	-	73,036	73,036	67,07
Schools supplementary grant	-	49,176	49,176	20,490
Mainstream schools additional grant	-	25,186	25,186	
Others	-	33,147	33,147	34,094
Other Government grants		2,127,082	2,127,082	2,032,346
Other government grants - SEN	_	299,253	299,253	293,216
Other local authority grants	-	2,431	2,431	10,282
	-	301,684	301,684	303,498
Other income from educational operations	59,309	-	59,309	57,322
	59,309	2,428,766	2,488,075	2,393,166
	59,309	2,428,766	2,488,075	2,393,166
Analysis of 2022 total by fund	57,322	2,335,844	2,393,166	

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone (A company limited by guarantee)

	Unrestricted	Total	Total
· . ·	funds 2023	funds 2023	funds 2022
	£	2023 £	2022 £
Lettings	11,700	11,700	15,569
Uniform sales	13,688	13,688	11,020
Fundraising	85	85	100
Insurance claims	8,200	8,200	5,000
	33,673	33,673	31,689
Analysis of 2022 total by fund	31,689	31,689	

	Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Bank interest	10,555	10,555	625
Analysis of 2022 total by fund	625	625	

7. Analysis of grants

	Grants to Institutions 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Improvements to diocesan property occupied by the Academy Trust	-	<u>.</u> .	113,057
Analysis of 2022 total by fund	113,057	113,057	

The costs in the prior year represent works completed on the Academy Trust's school buildings. As noted in accounting policy 1.9, the buildings are not reflected on the balance sheet, and so, in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction, associated improvements are treated as an expense for the year as a grant to the Diocese which owns the building.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2023

8.	Expenditure					
		Staff Costs 2023 £	Premises 2023	Other 2023	Total 2023 £	Total 2022 £
	Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:					
	Direct costs	-	-	554	554	1,056
	Educational operations:	·				
	Direct costs	1,572,896	-	211,950	1,784,846	1,741,440
	Allocated support costs	330,875	103,168	144,820	578,863	748,330
		1,903,771	103,168	357,324	2,364,263	2,490,826
	Analysis of 2022 total	2,074,113	89,647	327,066	2,490,826	
9.	Analysis of expenditure on charitable	activities				
	Summary by fund type					
			Unrestricted funds 2023	Restricted funds 2023	Total 2023 £	Total 2022 £
	Educational operations		64,109	2,299,600	2,363,709	2,602,827
	Analysis of 2022 total by fund		63,845	2,538,982	2,602,827	

	s to the financial statements the year ended 31 August 2023					
10.	Analysis of expenditure by activities	-				
		Direct costs 2023 £	Grants to institutions 2023	Support costs 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
	Educational operations	1,784,846	-	578,863	2,363,709	2,602,827
	Analysis of 2022 total	1,741,440	113,057	748,330	2,602,827	
	Analysis of support costs					
					Total funds 2023	Total funds 2022 £
	Staff costs Premises costs Governance costs Other support costs				330,875 126,565 13,145 108,278	536,022 94,115 12,756 105,437
				=	578,863	748,330
11.	Net income/(expenditure)					
	Net income/(expenditure) for the year incl	udes:				
					2023 £	2022 £
	Operating lease rentals Depreciation of tangible fixed assets Fees paid to auditors for:				1,459 33,870	1,332 43,374
	- audit - other services				8,575 2,185	7,690 1,920

Notes to the financial statements	
For the year ended 31 August 2023	

	•	Stat	ΓF
I	?	Sta	и

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

	2023 £	2022 £
Wages and salaries	1,421,487	1,368,749
Social security costs	113,142	112,021
Pension costs	369,142	576,654
	1,903,771	2,057,424
Agency staff costs	-	16,689
	1,903,771	2,074,113

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

	2023 No.	2022 No.
Teachers	20	17
Administration and support	46	49
Management	4	4
	70	70
The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:		
	2023 No.	2022 No.
Teachers	16	14
Administration and support	33	35
Management	4	4
	53	53

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

12. Staff (continued)

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

In the band £60,001 - £70,000	3 2022 No.
·	1 .
In the band £70,001 - £80,000	-

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £282,407 (2022 - £267,778).

13. Trustees' remuneration and expenses

Some Trustees have been paid remuneration and received pension benefits as a result of their employment with the Academy Trust. The Headteacher and other Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking their roles under their contracts of employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

		2023	2022
		£	£
Daniel Smith, Headteacher and Accounting Officer	Remuneration	70,000 - 75,000	65,000 - 70,000
	Pension contributions paid	15,000 - 20,000	15,000 - 20,000
Julia Finch	Remuneration	55,000 - 60,000	50,000 - 55,000
	Pension contributions paid	10,000 - 15,000	10,000 - 15,000
Hannah Griffiths	Remuneration	45,000 - 50,000	40,000 - 45,000
	Pension contributions paid	10,000 - 15,000	10,000 - 15,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2022 - £NIL).

14. Trustees' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £88 (2022 - £75). The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

15.	Tangible fixed assets			
		Furniture and equipment	Computer equipment £	Total £
	Cost or valuation			
	At 1 September 2022	223,358	150,928	374,286
	Additions	22,989	3,231	26,220
	Disposals	(839)	-	(839)
	At 31 August 2023	245,508	154,159	399,667
	Depreciation			
	At 1 September 2022	174,940	95,427	270,367
	Charge for the year	14,837	19,033	33,870
	On disposals	(839)	-	(839)
	At 31 August 2023	188,938	114,460	303,398
	Net book value			
	At 31 August 2023	56,570	39,699	96,269
	At 31 August 2022	48,418	55,501	103,919
16.	Debtors			
			2023 £	2022 £
	Trade debtors		1,126	-
	Recoverable VAT		11,089	19,956
	Prepayments and accrued income		38,590	38,672
		•	50,805	58,628
		:		

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2022 £ 129,122 24,358 41,060
129,122 24,358
24,358
41,060
127,979
322,519
2022 £
47,402
43,638
(47,402)
43,638

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance of the 2023/24 academic year, including ESFA UIFSM grant.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

18. Statement of funds

	Balance at 1 September 2022 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2023
Unrestricted funds						
General fund	322,077	111,762	(64,663)	<u> </u>	-	369,176
Restricted general funds	•					
General Annual Grant (GAG)	160,096	1,878,510	(1,742,222)	-	-	296,384
Other DfE/ESFA grants	113,925	248,572	(206,541)	-	· •	155,956
Other government	59,585	301,684	(275,967)	-	-	85,302
Pension reserve	(234,000)	-	(41,000)	-	275,000	-
	99,606	2,428,766	(2,265,730)		275,000	537,642
Restricted fixed asset funds						
Fixed assets	103,919	-	(33,870)	26,220	-	96,269
DfE/ESFA capital	-	27,754	-	(26,220)	-	1,534
•	103,919	27,754	(33,870)	-	-	97,803
Total Restricted funds	203,525	2,456,520	(2,299,600)	-	275,000	635,445
Total funds	525,602	2,568,282	(2,364,263)	<u>-</u>	275,000	1,004,621

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy Trust.

The other DfE/ESFA grant fund is used to track non-GAG revenue grant funding received from the DfE/ESFA and connected bodies, and principally included the material grants detailed separately in note 4.

The other government grants fund is used to track grants provided by government departments such as Local Authorities.

The pension reserve is a restricted fund to account for movements in the Local Government Pension Scheme balance.

The restricted fixed asset funds are carried forward to meet the specific costs of fixed asset projects and to cover the depreciation charges that will be required on these projects going forward and the current fixed assets held.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

18. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

	Balance at I September 2021 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Unrestricted funds				•		
General fund	281,706	105,272	(64,901)		-	322,077
Restricted general funds						
General Annual						
Grant (GAG)	17,556	1,839,902	(1,673,670)	(23,692)	-	160,096
Other DfE/ESFA grants	170,307	192,444	(244,294)	(4,532)	-	113,925
Other government	73,625	303,498	(317,538)	-	-	59,585
Pension reserve	(1,217,000)	-	(260,000)	-	1,243,000	(234,000)
- - -	(955,512)	2,335,844	(2,495,502)	(28,224)	1,243,000	99,606
Restricted fixed asset funds						
Fixed assets	110,225	-	(43,480)	37,174	-	103,919
DfE/ESFA capital	-	8,950	-	(8,950)	-	-
. -	110,225	8,950	(43,480)	28,224	-	103,919
Total Restricted funds	(845,287)	2,344,794	(2,538,982)	-	1,243,000	203,525
Total funds	. (563,581)	2,450,066	(2,603,883)	-	1,243,000	525,602

Note	es to	the	financi	al s	statemer	ıts
For	the y	year	ended	31	August	2023

19.	Analysis	of net	assets	between	funds
-----	----------	--------	--------	---------	-------

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

	Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Restricted funds 2023 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2023	Total funds 2023
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	96,269	96,269
Current assets	372,676	757,358	1,534	1,131,568
Creditors due within one year	(3,500)	(219,716)	-	(223,216)
Total	369,176	537,642	97,803	1,004,621
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year				
	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	103,919	103,919
Current assets	325,915	652,287	-	978,202
Creditors due within one year	(3,838)	(318,681)	-	(322,519)

322,077

(234,000)

99,606

103,919

(234,000)

525,602

Notes to the financial statements

St John's Church of England Primary School Maidstone (A company limited by guarantee)

	Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities		
		2023 £	2022 £
	Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)	204,019	(153,817,
	Adjustments for:		
	Depreciation	33,870	43,374
	Capital grants from DfE and other capital income	(27,754)	(8,950)
	Interest receivable	(10,555)	(625)
	Defined benefit pension scheme administration costs	1,000	1,000
	Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable	33,000	240,000
	Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost	7,000	19,000
	Decrease in debtors	7,823	27,679
	(Decrease)/increase in creditors	(99,303)	74,758
	Loss on disposal of fixed assets	-	107
	Net cash provided by operating activities	149,100	242,526
21.	Cash flows from investing activities		
		2023 £	2022 £
	Dividends, interest and rents from investments	10,555	625
	Purchase of tangible fixed assets	(26,220)	(37,175)
	Capital grants from DfE Group	27,754	8,950
	Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities	12,089	(27,600)
22.	Analysis of cash and cash equivalents		
		2023	2022
		£	£
•	Cash in hand and at bank	1,080,763	919,574
			
23.	Analysis of changes in net debt		
	At 1 September 2022 £	Cash flows £	At 31 August 2023
	I.		

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

24. Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Kent County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £34,634 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £36,068) and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 30 October 2023. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £39,800 million
- the SCAPE discount rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 1.7% above the rate of CPI, and is based on the Office for Budget Responsibility's forecast for long-term GDP growth.

The revised employer contribution rate, arising from the 2020 valuation, is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024. The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2027.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £185,000 (2022 - £174,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website (https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2023/10/valuation-result.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

24. Pension commitments (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £181,000 (2022 - £180,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £145,000 (2022 - £143,000) and employees' contributions totalled £36,000 (2022 - £37,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.5 per cent for employers and 5.5 to 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

	·	2023	2022
		%	%
Rate of increase in salaries		3.85	3.95
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation		2.85	2.95
Discount rate for scheme liabilities		5.30	4.25
	·		

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

	2023 Years	2022 Years
Retiring today	•	
Males	20.7	21.1
Females	23.2	23.5
Retiring in 20 years		
Males	22.0	22.3
Females	24.6	24.9
Sensitivity analysis		
	2023 £000	2022 £000
Discount rate +0.1%	(31)	(39)
Discount rate -0.1%	32	40
Mortality assumption - I year increase	46	. 50
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease	(44)	(48)
CPI rate +0.1%	32	39
CPI rate -0.1%	. (31)	(38)

Notes to the	financial	statements
For the year	r ended 31	August 2023

At 31 August

Pension commitments (continued)		
Share of scheme assets		
The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:		
	At 31 August 2023 £	At 31 August 2022 £
Equities	1,057,000	974,000
Gilts	10,000	9,000
Corporate bonds	230,000	197,000
Property	168,000	175,000
Cash and other liquid assets	18,000	25,000
Investment funds	119,000	107,000
Infrastructure	63,000	-
Total market value of assets	1,665,000	1,487,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £(12,000) (2022 - £(18,000)).		
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:		
	2023 £	
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:		£
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost	£	£ (383,000)
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income	£ (178,000)	£ (383,000) 23,000
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost	£ (178,000) 66,000	£ (383,000, 23,000 (42,000,
	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000)	£ (383,000) 23,000 (42,000) (1,000)
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost Administrative expenses	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000) (1,000)	£ (383,000) 23,000 (42,000) (1,000)
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost Administrative expenses Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000) (1,000)	(383,000) 23,000 (42,000) (1,000) (403,000)
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost Administrative expenses Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000) (1,000) (186,000)	(383,000) 23,000 (42,000) (1,000) (403,000)
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost Administrative expenses Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000) (1,000) (186,000) ==================================	(383,000) 23,000 (42,000) (1,000) (403,000) 2022 £ 2,554,000
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost Administrative expenses Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows: At 1 September Current service cost	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000) (1,000) (186,000) 2023 £	(383,000, 23,000 (42,000, (1,000, (403,000, 2022 £ 2,554,000 383,000
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost Administrative expenses Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows: At 1 September Current service cost Interest cost Employee contributions	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000) (1,000) (186,000) 2023 £ 1,721,000 178,000	2022 £ (383,000, 23,000 (42,000, (1,000, (403,000, 2022 £ 2,554,000 383,000 42,000 37,000
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: Current service cost Interest income Interest cost Administrative expenses Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows: At 1 September Current service cost Interest cost	£ (178,000) 66,000 (73,000) (1,000) (186,000) 2023 £ 1,721,000 178,000 73,000	(383,000, 23,000 (42,000, (1,000, (403,000, 2022) £ 2,554,000 383,000 42,000

1,665,000

1,721,000

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

24. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

	2023 £	2022 £
At 1 September	1,487,000	1,337,000
Interest income	66,000	23,000
Actuarial losses	(15,000)	(41,000)
Employer contributions	145,000	143,000
Employee contributions	36,000	37,000
Benefits paid	(53,000)	(11,000)
Administration expenses	(1,000)	(1,000)
At 31 August	1,665,000	1,487,000

25. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

	2023 £	2022 £
Not later than 1 year	2,911	1,232
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years	4,535	2,771
	7,446	4,003

26. Members' liability

Each member of the Academy Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

27. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

Miss M Downey, daughter of Mrs H Downey (School Business Manager), has been employed by the school on a zero hours contract since 30 November 2020. A normal job advertisement took place, in which she had no involvement in, and salary is based on the normal Kent pay scales.

Trustees' remuneration, paid under employment contracts, is disclosed in note 13.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

28. Controlling party

The Academy Trust is run by the senior management team on a day to day basis. Strategic decisions are made by the Trustees. There is no ultimate controlling party.